
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date and Time: Monday, August 3, 2020 at 8:00AM CST
Location: City Hall, 101 South Boulevard, Baraboo, WI 53913

Room: C205 Dennis O Thurow Committee Room

Notices:
Full Paper to Members: Alderpersons: John Ellington, Heather Kierzek & Kathleen Thurow
Full Paper to Others: Mayor, Mike Palm
Paper excluding Closed Session: Library for subsequent posting
E-mail: Clerks and Donna Munz
Outlook Meeting Calendar: Interim City Administrator, Ed Geick; City Attorney, Emily Truman;

Police Chief, Mark Schauf; Finance Director, Cynthia Haggard; City
Engineer, Tom Pinion; Clerk, Brenda Zeman

Citizen or other notices: Neighbors to 1150 12th Street.

1. Call to Order:
a. Roll call of members.
b. Note Compliance with Open Meeting Law.
c. Approve minutes – July 6, 2020.
d. Approve agenda.

2. Action Items:
a. Consider application for keeping chickens – Michael Lutz. See the following attachments:

i. City Ordinance 29.14, Chicken Permit
ii. Michael Lutz @ 418 10th Street
iii. Additional communication from Lutz
iv. Letter from Jennifer Wiese @ 419 9th Street

b. Consider application for keeping chickens – Mariah Phillips. See the following attachments
i. Mariah Phillips @ 316 3rd Street
ii. Communication from Domenick Reese @ 525 2nd Street
iii. Communication from Kathryn Calabrese @ 507 2nd Street

c. Consider Liquor License for the following applicant:
i. Las Milpas, LLC

d. Consider Request for Excessive Household Animals (3 Dogs) – Thomas & Teri Dorner. See the
following attachments:

i. City Ordinance 29.11, Number of Dogs and Cats per Household Limited; Special
Exception Permit.

ii. Memorandum from Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director
iii. Letter from Dorner family

3. Information Items
a. Date and time of next meeting: Recommend Tuesday, September 8, 2020 at 8:00AM CST, since

Monday, September 7, 2020 is a holiday.

4. Adjournment:

Alderperson Ellington

For more information about the City of Baraboo, visit our website at www.cityofbaraboo.com.

Agenda prepared by Cynthia Haggard, (608) 355-2700
Agenda Posted by Donna Munz on July 30, 2020

Any person, who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act and requires the meeting
or materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format, should contact the Baraboo City Clerk at 101
South Boulevard, Baraboo, Wisconsin or by phone (608) 355-2700 during regular business hours at least 48 hours
before the meeting to ensure reasonable arrangements are made to accommodate each request.

1 of 20



Administrative Committee July 6, 2020
Present: Alderpersons John Ellington, Heather Kierzek & Kathleen Thurow
Absent: None
Also Present: Mayor Palm, Finance Director, Cynthia Haggard; Police Chief, Mark Schauf; City Clerk, Brenda Zeman; and

City Attorney, Emily Truman.
Citizen Present: Geri Pettersen and her daughter

The meeting was called to order by Chairman John Ellington at 8:00AM CST., with roll call and noting compliance with the Open
Meetings Law.

Motion by Kierzek to approve the minutes of June 1, 2020 and June 18, 2020, seconded by Thurow and unanimously carried.

Motion by Kierzek to approve agenda, seconded by Thurow and unanimously carried.

Review and possible recommendation to Council to update Section 12.01(6) of the City Code regarding the expiration date for
licenses and permits.

City Attorney Truman stated that the change was simply changing the expiration date from December 30th to December 31st.

Motion to recommend to Council to update Section 12.01(6) of the City Code regarding the expiration date for licenses and permits
by Thurow, seconded by Kierzek and unanimously carried.

Review and possible recommendation to Council to adopt a new Chapter in the City Code dedicated to ordinances regulating
animals, and to instruct the City Attorney to:

 Update the Municipal Code to include the new Chapter
 Make the corresponding updates to §25.10, “Bond Schedule for Ordinance Violations,”
 Change all of the ordinances moved in their entirety to the proposed new Chapter to “Reserved,” for future Code use, with

the exception of §§12.08A and 12.13(M) which can be removed in their entirety, and
 Update all cross-references located throughout the Code (e.g., §§ 10.03(6) and 10.05(10), the City’s Official Fee Schedule,

etc.)

Motion to recommend to Council to adopt a new Chapter in the City Code dedicated to ordinances regulating animals, and to
instruct the City Attorney to update the Municipal Code to include the new Chapter, to make the corresponding updates to §25.10,
“Bond Schedule for Ordinance Violations,” to change all of the ordinances moved in their entirety to the proposed new Chapter to
“Reserved,” for future code use, with the exception of §§12.08A and 12.13(M) which can be removed in their entirety, and to update
all cross-references located throughout the Code (e.g., §§10.03(6) and 10.05(10), the City’s Official Fee Schedule, etc. by Thurow,
seconded by Kierzek and unanimously carried.

Review and possible recommendation to Council to amend Section 1.30, “Baraboo District Ambulance Commission” of the City
Code by combining and consolidating Chapter 28, “Baraboo District Ambulance Commission” into that Section.

Motion to recommend to Council to amended Section 1.30, “Baraboo District Ambulance Commission” of the City Code by
combining and consolidating Chapter 28, “Baraboo District Ambulance Commission” into that Section by Kierzek, seconded by
Thurow and unanimously carried.

Consider application for keeping chickens for Michael Lutz @ 418 10th Street

Ellington referenced a letter from Lutz requesting a waiver for the placement of the coop. The waiver was received after the agenda
was posted. A copy of the letter is included in the minutes of the meeting (Exhibit A)

Kierzek brought up a section in the Code that addresses the max size of a coop per chicken. Since there was an issue with the
number of chickens and the size of the coop, the application was postponed.

Motion to postpone consideration of application for keeping chickens for Michael Lutz @ 418 10th Street to the August 3rd meeting
by Thurow, seconded by Kierzek and unanimously carried.

2 of 20



Consider Request for Excessive Household Animals (4 Dogs) – Geri Pettersen

Ellington mentioned that a letter was received from Dave Mowers, Pettersen’s neighbor, sharing past experiences. The letter came
after the agenda was posted. A copy of the letter is included in the minutes of the meeting (Exhibit B).

Motion to approve and move on to Council the request for Pettersen’s Excessive Household Animals (4 dogs) by Kierzek, seconded
by Ellington and unanimously carried.

Member comments
The next meeting will be Monday, August 3, 2020 at 8:00AM CST. Meeting location will be 101 South Boulevard.

Motion to adjourn by Kierzek, seconded by Thurow and unanimously carried. Meeting adjourned at 8:36AM CST.

Respectfully submitted,
Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director

3 of 20



d. The applicant cannot have any convictions for animal abuse, animal neglect or animal cruelty.
e. The applicant is not delinquent in the payment of any taxes, assessments or other claims owed to

the City.

(4) LICENSE CONDITIONS. The following conditions shall apply to all Animal Rescue Licenses:
a. No more than a total of eight animals (four adult dogs and four adult cats combined) shall be

owned, harbored or kept by one household.
b. Only one Animal Rescue License shall be allowed per household.
c. Each animal kept on the premises must be raised in a safe, sanitary and healthful environment and shall

be properly fed and groomed at all times and all animal waste shall be disposed of in a safe and sanitary
manner.

d. The owner of the household where such animals are harbored or kept must give his/her written
consent to the granting of an exception under this subsection.

e. If the license holder becomes unaffiliated with the bona fide animal rescue organization listed on
the application, the license holder must immediately notify the City Clerk and provide the name of
the new bona fide animal rescue organization the license holder is affiliated with.

(5) LICENSE TERM. All licenses shall expire on June 30 of every odd numbered year.

(6) INSPECTIONS. Law enforcement officers and humane officers shall be authorized to inspect the household
with reasonable notice to the owner or occupants thereof for compliance with the license conditions.

(7) LICENSE REVOCATION. A single violation of any of the conditions contained in this ordinance, or any
applicable condition contained in §12.01 of the Code, shall be sufficient grounds for revocation of the Animal Rescue
License by the Common Council. For purposes of this section, a “violation” need not have resulted in a conviction
so long as a law enforcement officer or humane officer is able to reasonably articulate and provide clear and
convincing evidence, of which testimony may suffice, of said violation.

29.13 CHICKEN PERMIT. (1854 02/17/96, 2312 07/28/09)

(1) PERMIT REQUIRED.
a. Chickens may be raised in the R-1, R-1A, R-2, R-3, and MH-S Residential Zoning Districts provided

the owner of the premises has been issued a permit by the City Clerk. (2458 08/27/17, 2515
03/12/19)

b. Upon receipt of a completed permit application, other than a renewal application pursuant to Par.
(3), below, the City Clerk shall notify by regular mail all property owners contiguous with the parcel
proposed for the chicken coop. These property owners shall have 10 business days from the date of
the letter to file with the City Clerk a written objection, signed by the objector, to the permit being
issued.

c. If an objection is received, the City Clerk shall place the permit application on the next regularly
scheduled Administrative Committee meeting agenda, where the objection will either be read into the
record or the objector will have an opportunity to be heard on the objection. The Administrative
Committee shall approve the permit application so long as the following are satisfied:

i. The basis for the objection is not reasonable, is not relevant to the facts presented, and/or
the benefit to the applicant outweighs the reasons for the objection made by the objector.

ii. The applicant does not have a history of non-compliance with this ordinance, or, if there
is a history of non-compliance, the applicant has provided sufficient proof that such non-
compliance will not continue.

iii. The coop and run have been inspected by the humane officer or designee to ensure that
they are adequate and in compliance with the requirements this ordinance.

iv. The applicant has no prior convictions for animal cruelty or related offenses.
v. The applicant is not delinquent in the payment of any taxes, assessments or other claims

owed to the City, including a forfeiture resulting from a violation of any ordinance of the
City.

d. If no objection is received, the City Clerk shall issue the permit so long as the following are satisfied:
i. The applicant does not have a history of non-compliance with this ordinance or, if there

is a history of non-compliance, the applicant has provided sufficient proof that such non-

4 of 20

chaggard
Line



compliance will not continue.
ii. The coop and run have been inspected by the City Humane officer or designee to ensure

that they are adequate and in accordance with the requirements of this ordinance.
iii. The applicant has no prior convictions for animal cruelty or similar offenses.
iv. The applicant is not delinquent in the payment of any taxes, assessments or other claims

owed to the City, including a forfeiture resulting from a violation of any Ordinance of the
City.

(2) PARCEL, COOP AND RUN REQUIREMENTS.
a. Chicken coops and runs shall not be located closer than 10 feet to any lot line and may not be

located closer to a neighboring residence than to the residence located upon the coop’s parcel.
b. The lot upon which the chickens are raised shall have a minimum width of fifty feet, and contain

only a single-family dwelling. In addition, all contiguous properties to the lot upon which the
chickens are raised shall contain only a single-family or two-family dwelling.

c. A zero lot line duplex is not qualified to have chickens.
d. The chickens shall be provided with a covered coop with not less than two nor more than four

square feet of area per chicken.
e. The coop shall be constructed of sturdy, predator-proof material and shall provide adequate shade

from the sun and warmth in cold weather. The floor of the coop shall be covered with wood or
cedar chips and be regularly cleaned and otherwise maintained.

f. The coop may be built as part of a yard shed or garage, but cannot be placed on top of a building.
g. Chickens shall be provided with a run attached to or surrounding the coop. The run shall be made

of strong, predator-proof wire fencing. To prevent chickens from flying out of the run, fencing
shall be of sufficient height, be covered, or the chickens shall have their wings clipped.

h. Chickens shall be kept in the covered coop or in the fenced run at all times.

(3) CHICKEN CARE REQUREMENTS.
a. Chickens shall not be allowed inside of a residence.
b. Chickens may only be raised on the property of the owner, or if a tenant, with the written consent

of the owner.
c. Roosters and crowing cockerels shall not be kept.
d. No more than six chickens may be maintained on any parcel.
e. The slaughtering of chickens in the Residential Zoning Districts is prohibited.
f. The standards and requirements of § 29.27 of this Code shall fully apply to the keeping of

chickens.

(4) PERMIT TERM. All permits shall expire on June 30 of every odd numbered year.

(5) PERMIT RENEWAL. Current permit holders may apply for a renewal license no sooner than three months
prior to the permit expiration date and no later than five days prior to the expiration date. Prior to the issuance
of a renewal permit, the humane officer or designee shall inspect the coop and run to ensure continued
compliance with this code; failure to be in compliance with this code at the time of inspection shall result in
the renewal license not being issued and the permit holder needing to apply for a new license.

(6) REVOCATION. In the event a permit holder accumulates three violations of this ordinance within any 12-
month period, or five violations within any 36-month period, or if the permit holder is convicted of an offense
under Ch. 951, Wis. Stats., or any comparable statute in another jurisdiction, the permit shall be revoked 10
business days after the service of a Notice of Revocation on the permit holder by the City Clerk. Notice of
Revocation is deemed served upon the day of mailing if sent by certified mail to the permit holder at the
address as listed upon the application for the permit. If, during those 10 business days the permit holder files
a request for an appeal with the City Clerk, the revocation will be stayed pending the outcome of the appeal.
The Administrative Committee shall hear the appeal at their next regularly scheduled meeting and make a final
determination on the revocation based on whether there are validated complaint(s) investigated by the Baraboo
Police Department.

(7) REAPPLICATION. The denial, non-renewal or revocation of a permit shall not preclude an applicant from
reapplying for a permit at any time in the future.

5 of 20



(8) NON-TRANSFERRABLE. Permits are non-transferrable from person to person or place to place. In the
event a permit holder moves, the permit holder must notify the City Clerk within 10 calendar days of said
move and the permit shall be revoked by the City Clerk.

29.14 VICIOUS ANIMALS; LICENSE.

(1) VICIOUS ANIMALS PROHIBITED. No person shall own, possess, harbor, keep, maintain, sell or transfer
a vicious animal contrary to the terms of this section. (2092 09/10/02)

(2) VICIOUS ANIMAL LICENSE. Any person who may own, possess, harbor, keep, or maintain a vicious animal
shall do so only after first having obtained a Vicious Animal License approved by the Chief of Police or designee
and issued by the City Clerk. A Vicious Animal License will be issued subject to proof of the following:

a. A liability insurance policy written by an insurance company licensed to do business in the State of
Wisconsin, covering death and personal injury, in the amount of at least three hundred thousand dollars
($300,000) and property damage in the amount of at least fifty thousand dollars ($50,000). The policy shall
provide notice to the City Clerk thirty (30) days in advance of any material change therein and of its
termination or non-renewal.

b. Current vaccination for rabies.
c. Current animal license.
d. Neutering or spaying.
e. Permanently marking the animal a subcutaneous microchip and providing the identification information

on the application for license. (2279 04/22/08)
f. The applicant cannot have any convictions for animal abuse, animal neglect or animal cruelty.
g. The applicant is not delinquent in the payment of any taxes, assessments or other claims owed to the

City.

(3) CONDITIONS OF LICENSE. A license issued pursuant to this ordinance is conditioned upon the
following:

a. Continued compliance with Par. (2), above.
b. The posting of signs no smaller than twenty-four inches (24”) in size on each of four sides, made of

metal or plastic, fluorescent yellow in color, bearing the wording, ‘WARNING VICIOUS ANIMAL,”
in English print, no smaller than three inches (3”) high and also bearing the license number of each
vicious animal no smaller than one inch (1”) high, which signs shall be posted at each entrance to the
building in which the vicious animal is kept and at each entrance through a fence, and at such location
as is viewable from the public sidewalk, if any, in the vicinity of any walk or drive approaching any
entrance to the building in which the vicious animal is kept.

c. The animal, while off the premises where kept, shall be muzzled with a no-bite type muzzle, restrained
as to movement by a choke-type collar or harness and leash secured by and under the direct control and
supervision of a mentally competent adult.

d. The animal, while on the premises where kept, shall be placed within a secured building, or within a
secured fence of sufficient height and construction to maintain the animal within, which fence shall be
inspected and approved by the Police Department.

e. If the animal dies from any cause or means, or if the animal is relocated outside of the City for any
reason, the owner shall immediately inform the City Clerk and the license shall be revoked.

f. If the animal is relocated outside of the City, the owner of the animal consents to the Chief of Police or
designee informing the Chief of Police or comparably titled employee of the municipality where the
animal relocates that the animal was licensed as a vicious animal by the City; however, under no
circumstances is the Chief of Police or any other employee or agent of the City obligated to provide said
notice.

(4) SELLING OR TRANSFERING A VICIOUS ANIMAL. If a vicious animal is sold or if ownership is
transferred, the owner must:

a. Notify the person to whom the vicious animal is being sold or transferred of the fact that such is a
vicious animal and of any requirements imposed upon the selling or transferring party by this Ordinance.

b. Notify the City Clerk in writing at least five (5) business days in advance of the sale or transfer.

6 of 20

chaggard
Line



7 of 20



8 of 20



9 of 20



10 of 20



11 of 20



12 of 20



13 of 20



14 of 20



15 of 20



16 of 20

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line



(5) UNTAGGED DOGS AND CATS. Untagged adult dogs and cats are prohibited. An adult dog or adult cat is
considered to be “untagged” if a rabies vaccination tag or City-issued license tag is not attached to a collar which is
kept on the dog or cat whenever the dog or cat is outdoors unless the dog or cat is confined.

29.11 NUMBER OF DOGS AND CATS PER HOUSEHOLD LIMITED; SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT.

(1) DOG AND CAT LIMITS. Except as otherwise permitted by this Chapter, no person shall own, harbor or keep
more than two adult dogs and two adult cats in a household. If more than two adult dogs and two adult cats are
owned, harbored or kept in or by any one household, the head of the household shall be deemed the person so
owning, harboring or keeping such animals, notwithstanding that the dog or cat license or licenses may be issued
to other members of the household as owners of such animals.

(2) SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT. The Common Council shall be authorized to grant a Special Exception
Permit to allow a greater number of adult dogs and/or adult cats for a specific household provided the following
conditions are satisfied:

a. Permit Request.
i. The head of household must submit a request for a Special Exception Permit in writing to the

City Clerk, who, upon receipt, shall schedule the request to be considered at the next regularly
scheduled Administrative Committee meeting where the notice requirements described in sub.
ii, below, can be timely made.

ii. Upon receiving the request, the City Clerk or designee shall attempt to notify the owners of
property immediately adjacent to the requestor’s property regarding the request. This attempt
shall be made by regular mail to be posted at least 10 calendar days prior to the date of the
Administrative Committee meeting at which the application will be heard.

b. Administrative Committee Review. Before the Council considers a request for a Special Exception
Permit, the request shall be reviewed by the Administrative Committee. If the Administrative
Committee finds that the Permit should not be issued based on the factors listed in Subs. (c) i-vii, below,
this determination shall be final and shall constitute a formal denial of the request. If the Administrative
Committee finds that the Permit should be granted, or granted with conditions in addition to those listed
in Par. (3), below, this determination shall be deemed a recommendation only and the final
determination shall be made by the Council.

c. Common Council Authorization. Upon a recommendation from the Administrative Committee to
grant a Special Exemption Permit, or to grant a Special Exemption Permit with conditions in addition
to those listed in Par. (3), below the Council shall make the final determination based on the following
factors: (1885 10/08/96, 2448 09/13/16)

i. Whether the need for the additional animal is based on a change in household
circumstances. An existing household acquiring a new animal shall not be considered a
change in household circumstances if that was the only change to the household.

ii. Whether the excess animal is an ADA service animal, as defined by 28 CFR § 35.104.
iii. How and when the excess animal was acquired by the household and whether the animal was

acquired with knowledge of the limited number of such animals permitted by this ordinance.
iv. The care and treatment of all animals in the household.
v. Whether any resident of the household has a conviction involving or related to animal cruelty or

abuse, including a violation of §29.27 of this Code.
vi. Relevant testimony of any property owner notified pursuant to Subs. (a) ii, above.
vii. Whether the applicant is delinquent in the payment of any taxes, assessments or other

claims owed to the City.

(3) PERMIT CONDITIONS. The following conditions shall apply to all Special Exception Permits:
a. No more than a total of five animals (adult dogs and adult cats combined) shall be owned, harbored

or kept by one household, except that the Council may allow additional animals based upon a finding
by the Council that the animals are ADA service animals, as defined by 28 CFR § 35.104, and that all
other conditions of this ordinance are met.

b. Only one Special Exception Permit shall be allowed per household so that in no case shall a household
have more than 3 adult dogs or 3 adult cats, except that the Council may allow excess animals based
upon a finding by the Council that the animals are ADA service animals, as defined by 28 CFR § 35.104,
and that all other conditions of this ordinance are met.

17 of 20

chaggard
Line



c. Each permitted animal must be neutered or spayed.
d. Each permitted animal must be raised in a safe, sanitary and healthful environment and shall be properly

fed and groomed at all times and all animal waste shall be disposed of in a safe and sanitary manner.
e. If a permitted animal dies, it shall not be replaced with another animal.
f. Each permitted animal must be kept or harbored inside the residence.
g. The owner of the household where such animals are harbored or kept must give his/her written

consent to the granting of an exception under this subsection.
h. Each permitted animal must be properly registered with the City and all license fees paid.
i. Any additional conditions the Council deems necessary for public health, safety and general

welfare.

(4) INSPECTIONS. Law enforcement officers and humane officers shall be authorized to inspect the household
with reasonable notice to the owner or occupants thereof for compliance with the conditions established by the
Council.

(5) PERMIT TERM. A Special Exception Permit shall be valid until the permitted animal dies or is no longer
kept in the household.

(6) STAY OF ENFORCEMENT. A person in violation of Par. (1), above, but who has submitted a request for a
Special Exception Permit to the City Clerk and is waiting the final decision on the request shall not be subject to
penalty under this Chapter during the time in which the request has been submitted and the final decision has
been made.

(7) PERMIT REVOCATION. A single violation of any of the conditions contained in this ordinance, or any other
condition ordered by the Council, or any applicable condition contained in §12.01 of the Code, shall be sufficient
grounds for revocation of the Special Exception Permit by the Common Council. For purposes of this section, a
“violation” need not have resulted in a conviction so long as a law enforcement officer or humane officer is
able to reasonably articulate and provide clear and convincing evidence, of which testimony may suffice, of
said violation.

29.12 NUMBER OF DOGS AND CATS PER HOUSEHOLD; ANIMAL RESCUE LICENSE. (2370 01/10/2012
[created])

(1) DEFINITIONS. As used in this section,
a. “Animal rescue household” means a single-family residence working in conjunction with a bona

fide animal rescue organization to temporarily board dogs or cats until a new home can be found
for the animal.

b. “Bona fide animal rescue organization” is an organization dedicated to the adoption of surrendered,
abandoned, homeless, or otherwise ownerless dogs and/or cats, and which:

i. Has been in existence as an organization for a minimum of two years;
ii. Does not allow animals in the organization’s care to be mated or bred;
iii. Requires that animals live indoors in an environment suitable for socializing with humans;
iv. Requires that animals have up-to-date vaccinations;
v. Requires a personal visit to the home of potential clients of their animals; and
vi. Is a member of the Alliance of Wisconsin Animal Rehoming Efforts.

(2) ANIMAL RESCUE HOUSEHOLD; PERMITTED ANIMALS. A licensed animal rescue household shall
be allowed two additional adult dogs or two additional adult cats in the household. The additional animals
shall not be vicious animals as defined by this Chapter.

(3) LICENSE REQUIRED. An Animal Rescue Household License shall be issued by the City Clerk to the
head of the household of an animal rescue household that meets the following requirements:

a. The applicant provides a letter of recommendation with the application for the license from a
veterinarian supporting the household for animal rescue operations.

b. The applicant provides evidence that the animal rescue organization the applicant is associated with
is a bona fide animal rescue organization as defined in this ordinance.

c. All other dogs and cats in the household are licensed.

18 of 20

chaggard
Line



Finance Department Memorandum

To: Administrative Committee

From: Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director,

Date: August 3, 2020

Re: Thomas & Teri Dorner – Request for Excessive Household Animals

Letters were prepared and hand delivered to residents adjacent to the property at 1150 12th Street, Baraboo WI,
53913 where the Dorner family resides. The letters were hand delivered on July 30, 2020 and included a copy
of the agenda for the August 3, 2020 meeting; residents were invited to attend the meeting.

19 of 20



20 of 20

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line

chaggard
Line




